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witness Koman. Tt is the view of Commissioner MacIntyre that the
testimony of witness Koman should have been stricken for the reason
stated in a dissenting opinion by him in January 1971 [78 F.T.C.
1564], during the course of an interlocutory appeal proceeding herein.
Commissioner Jones agreed to the opinion on liability, but dissented
to the order, and submitted a dissenting statement.

In taE MATTER OF

GEORGIA-PACIFIC CORPORATION

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO THE ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT AND CLAYTON ACT, SEC. 7

Docket 88)3. dom-plm'nt, May 26, 1971—Decision, Dec. 26, 1972.

Consent order requiring; among other things, the divestiture by the natiof’s lead-
-ing producer and distributor. of softwood plywood, headguartered in Port-
land, Ore., of certain acquisitions alleged to be anticompetitive and
monopolistic in nature. The principal provisions of the order are that the
respondent shall create an’ indépendent corporation and transfer approxi-
mately 20 percent of its assets to'said corporation. The order further restricts
and prohibits future acquisitions in the timber industry in the South for
five years and places a ten-vear ban on the acquisition of the stocks and
assets of softwood plywood concerns without prior Federal Trade Commis-

sion approval.
COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that the
party respondent named above, as hereinafter more particularly desig-
nated and described, has violated and is now violating the provisions
of Section T of the Clayton Act. as amended, (U.S.C. Title 15, Section
18) through the acquisition of the stock and assets of various corpora-
tions, as hereinafter more particularly designated and described, here-
by issues its complaint pursuant to the provisions of Section 11 of the
aforesaid Clayton Act (U.S.C. Title 13, Section 21) stating its charges
in this respeet in the following Count I.

The Tederal Trade Commission, having further reason to believe
that aforesaid party respondent also has viclated and 1s now violating
the provisions of Scction 5 of the Federal Trade Comunission Act, as
amended (U.S.C. Title 15, Section 45), through the acyuisition of the
ctoek and assets of vavious corporations, as heveinafter more particu-
larly designated and deseribed, and it appearing to the Commission
that o procceding by it with reference thereto would be in the public
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interest, also issues- its complamt pursuant to the provisions of the
aforesaid Federal Trade Commission Act stating its charges in thls
respect in the following Count IT.

COUNT I .

DEFINITIONS

PARAG-RAPH 1. For the purpose of this complamt the followmg
definitions shall apply:. _
- Softwood—wood coming from a gymnosperm tree, otherw1se -
known ‘as coniferous woods such as pines, firs, spruces, and hemlocks. -
Generally light in texture, non-resistant and easily worked. ‘
Softwood - plywood—materials consustlng of sheets of softwood
glued or cemented together with the grains of adjacent layers ar-
ranged at right angles or at a wide angle and usually being made
(2) of uniformly thin veneer sheets, or :
- (b) of equal number of veneer sheets on either side of a th1cker
central layer , : '
: THE RESPONDENT SR

Par. 2. Respondent, Georgla Pacific Corporatlon, sometlmes here- -
inafter referred to as “G-P,” is, and has been, at least since January
1, 1960, a corporation organized, existing and doing business under
the laws of the State of Georgia with its present office and principal
place of business located at the Commonwealth Building, Portland,
Oregon.

Par. 3. G-P is engaged in the manufacture, sale, and distribution of
‘a wide variety of wood products including, but not restricted to, soft-
wood plywood, plywood specialties, lumber, and furniture. It also-is
engaged in the manufacture, sale and distribution of gypsum prod-
ucts, chemicals, wood by-products, and a variety of paper and paper
products including board, newsprint, tissues, toweling and napkins,
and paper.

Par. 4. In the course and conduct of its business, G-P is, and has
been, at least since J anuary 1, 1960, engaged in selhng its products to
purchasers located in various States of the United States, and caused
such products, when sold, to be transported from its facilities in vari-
ous States of the United States to such purchasers located in various
- other States of the United States. In so doing G-P is engaged in
“commerce,” as “commerce” is defined in the Clayton Act, as amended,
and has been continuously so engaged at least since 1960.

Par. 5. G-P’s development has been characterized through the
years by continuous growth. For calendar year 1949, G-P had net
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sales of approximately $35,042,000, and-its total assets approximated
$16973,000. For calendar year 1959, net sales were approximately

- $191,997,000, and its total assets had risen to approximately $264,225,-
000.

Par. 6. Much of G-P’s growth prior to 1960 was the result of its
acquisitions of stock or assets of other.corporations. By 1960, G-P
had become a highly integrated corporation within the lumber and

- softwood plywood industries, having its own'source’ of raw materials,
its own manufacturing plants, and its own distribution system. In
1960, G-P was a leading producer of softwood: plywobd with produc-
tion ‘in ‘that yea,r of apprommately 620, 934 OOO square feet (3/8“
ba31s) . f

Par. 7. By the end of 1969 G-P was the na,tlon s largest producer

_ of-softwood’ plywood with pr‘oductlon in that year of approx1ma.tely

1,922;879,000 square feet (35" basis)« :

Par. 8. In 1960, G-P had ten softwood plywood plants looated ‘on
the West Coast. Bythe end of 1969, it had 17 softwood plywood plants,
nine of which were located in the southern part of the United States.

Par. 9. As of the early part of 1970, G-P had formulated plans for
the construction of four additional softwood plywood plants, all lo-
cated in the South. When construction of these plants is ‘completed,
G-P’s softwood plywood capacity will be increased by apprommwtely
480 million square feet (84"’ basis).

Par. 10. By 1969, G-P was the third largest producer of lumber in
the United States and Canada, and the third largest producer of
gypsum products in the United States. Additionally, it is a leading
manufacturer of paper, pulp, and board products. '

Par. 11. In 1960, G-P owned in fee approximately 615,000 acres of
timberland, and held cutting rights covering approximately 50 mil-
lion additional board feet. At the end of 1969, G-P owned in fee in
the United States, Canada, and Brazil, timberlands totaling approxi-
mately 4.5 million acres, of which approximately 3.5 million acres
were in the United States. Also, it held exclusive cutting rights to an
additional 1.5 million acres of timberlands.

Par. 12. A significant portion of G-P’s growth subsequent to 1960
is directly attributable to acquisitions by G-P of the stock or assets of
formerly independent forest products corporations. During the
period 1961-1968, G-P acquired 45 companies, whose total combined
assets approximated $396,000,000. Through these acquisitions, G-P -
gained ownership in excess of 2,432,000 acres of timberland.
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Pir. 13. Softwood plywood isa separate and d1st1nct product whlch_
is dlstlngulshed from all other bulldmg matenals and all other prod—:
ucts in a number of Ways mcludlng, but not restrlcted to, its unique
manufacturing process, physical characteristics, and end uses. =

Par. 14. In the United States prior to 1964, softwood plywood Was
manufactured almost entitely “the, West Coasb In,that year. the_
domestlc productlon of soft pl_ywood began I the South as. a
result of the development of new manui.’awturmor technlques perm1t-_' _
ting utilization of the woods o southern pine trees, hltherto unsuit-

able for the manufacture 6f softwood plywood
~ Par. 15. The manufacture of softwo d plywood is
- tial 1ndUStry in the United States In
square feet (3/8 bas1s) Was produced ,
proximately $1,044;,000 OOO h b
. Par. 16. There has been a swmﬁcant increase in the productmn of
- s8ftwood plywood since 1963, W1th most of the increase occurring in
. the South. National production increased:approximately 3.5 billion
. square feet (34" basis) during the period 1963-1969, Whlle southern
production accounted for approx1mately 2.8 billion square feet (34"
basis) of this national increase.

Par. 17. The participation by G-P in this increase in southern pro-
duction has been substantial. G-P established the first plant for the
production of southern pine softwood plywood at Fordyce, Arkan-
sas, in 1963. By 1968 G-P had achieved a dominant position in the
production of softwood plywood in the South, accounting for ap-
proximately 85.4 percent of softwood plywood produced in that region
in that year. G-P’s success in achieving this position has resulted
primarily from a series of acquisitions and subsequent development
of southern pine timber bases suitable for support of long term produc-
tion of softwood plywood, including the acquisitions mentioned here-
inafter, with the result that there is now a shortage of such bases in
the southern pine region of the United States for development by
others.

Par. 18. Additionally, G-P is the leading producer of softwood
plywood in the United States, accounting for approximately 14 per-
cent of the nation’s production in 1969, almost double the production
of its nearest oompetltor

Par. 19. G-P is also the leading distributor of softwood plywood
accounting for approximately 18.3 percent of the mill shipments in
the United States in 1969.

,very substan-b
3, 2pPI? ately 14. 7 bllllOIl‘
1_ th Value of shlpments apr




988  FEDERAL TRADE '‘COMMISSION -DECISIONS
' Complaint 81 F.T.C.

Par. 20. There has been a significant increase in the level of concen-
tration in the production of softwood plywood. In 1963, the top four
and top eight producers had approx1mately 95.92 percent and 38.60.
percent of the nation’s productmn, respectively. By the end of 1969,
these shares had increased to 34. 59 percent and 49 21 percent,
respectively. =

" Par. 21. There has also ‘been a s1gn1ﬁcant increase in the level of
concentration in the natlona,l distribution of softwood plywood. In
1963, the top four and top eight d1str1butors of softwood plywood
accounted for 36.38 percent and 50.04 percent of domestic mill ship-
ments, respectively. By 1969, these shares had increased to 48. 22 per-
cent and 63.50 percent, respectwely :

Par. 22. The aforesaid increase in concentratlon has been paralleled
by a number of independent softwood plywood concerns leavmg the
lndustry, either by virtue of merger, joint venture, or by volunta.nly
ceasmg operatlons .
THL ACQUISITIONS

Fordyce Lumber Company :

Par. 23. Prior to and until Apr1l 1963 Fordyce Lumber Company,
sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Fordyce,” was a corporation or-
ganized, existing and doing business under the laws of the State of Ar-
kansas with its office and principal place of business located at  Fordyce,
Arkansas.

Par. 24. Fordyce was engaged in the production and sale of lumber
In the year preceding its acquisition by G-P, Fordyce produced ap-
proximately 32,384,000 board feet of lumber. In that year Fordyce’s
lumber sales amounted to approximately $2,800,000, and the stated
value of its assets was approximately $20,937,000. Included among such
assets were approximately 160,000 acres of forested timberlands.

Par. 25. In the course and conduct of its business prior to April 1963,
as aforesaid, Fordyce sold its products to purchasers located in various
States of the United States and caused such products, when sold to be
transported from its facilities in Arkansas to such purchasers located
in various other States of the United States. In so domg Fordyce was
engaged in “commerce,” as “commerce” is defined in the Clayton Act,
as amended. A

Par. 26. In April 1963, Georgia-Pacific Corporation acquired all of
the stock and assets of Fordyce Lumber Company for approximately
$20,800,000.

Par. 27. Subsequent to the aforesaid acquisition G—P abandoned the
lumber operation at Fordyce, Arkansas and constructed a plant for the
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production of softwood plywood. Such plant with an original annual
capacity to produce 90 million square feet of softwood plywood, subse- .
quently enlarged to a 120 million square feet capacity, began produc— _
tion in December 1963. Such plant was supplied, at least in substantial -
‘part w1th tlmber acquired i m the aforeszud acqms1tlon of Fordyce ‘

Amerlcan Tlmber Products Company

PAR 28 Prlor to and unt11 September 1, 1965 Amerlcan Tlmber
Products Company, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “American
Timber,” was a corporation organized, ex1st1ng and doing business un-
der the laws of the State of Delaware with its office and. prmclpal place
of business located at Portsmouth Vlrglma :
~ Pag. 29. American Timber was engaged in the productlon o:f lumber
which was used 1nternally by it and by its wholly-owned subsidiary
_corporatlons in‘the manufacture: ofa variety of wood preducts, includ- '
ing wooden crates and. baskets, wire bound crates and .veneer stock.
American Timber had.lumber facilities located at Portsmouth, Vir-
ginia and Murfreesboro, North Carolina. Various plants of its sub-
sidiary corporations were located in Arkansas, Georgia, New Jersey,
and North Carolina. In-the year preceding its acquisition by G-P,
American Timber produced approximately 8,677,000. board feet of
lumber which it used internally. In that year the stated value of its
assets was approximately $11,667,960. Included among such assets
were approximately 30,000 acres of timber 1ands situated in North Car-
olina and Virginia.

Par. 30. In the course and conduct of its business p1 ior to Septem-
ber 1, 1965, as aforesaid, American Timber sold its products to purchas-
ers located in various States of the United States and caused such prod-
ucts, when sold, to be transported from its facilities in various States
to purchasers located in various other States of the United States. In
so doing American Timber was engaged in “commerce,” as “commerce”
is defined in the Clayton Act, as amended.

Par. 31. On or about September 1, 1965, Georgia-Pacific (“orpomtmn
acquired all of the assets of American Timber Products Company for
approximately 210,000 shares of G-P common stock valued at approx-
imately $11,970,000.

Par. 32. In 1965, G-P constructed a softwood plywood plant at Em—
poria, Virginia, with a rated annual capacity of 100 million square feet.
Subsequent to the aforesaid acquisition, G-P began using the timber so
acquired to supply a part of the needs of this plant.
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J eﬁreys, Spauldmg Manufacturing Company, Incorporated and
nidiy Spauldmg TLumber Company, Incorporated '

‘ PAR 33 Prmr to and until October 1965 J eﬂ’reys, Spauldmg Manu-
facturmcr Company, Incorporated sometimes hereinafter referred to as
g eﬂ’reys,” and Spaulding Lumber Company, Incorporated, some-
times hereinafter referred to as “Spaulding,” were corporations orga-
nized, existing, and doing business under the laws of the State of Vir-
ginia, ‘with their ofﬁces and prmclpal places of busmess located at
Chage City, Virginia.

- Par. 34. Jeffreys and Spauldmo were closely held corporations ad-
mlmstered by the same’ execuitive officer, George M Spaulding, and
opera.ted s0 as to mutually benefit each other. ‘

' Par. 35. Jeffreys and Spauldmg were both’ engatred in the produc-
tlon and' sale of lumber. In the'year preceding their acquisition by
G=P the combined lumber sales of Jeffreys and Spaulding amounted to
approximately$2,654,000, and the stated ‘values of their assets were ap-
proximately $2,300,000 and $2;700,000, respectlvely Included among

- such assets were the combmed total of apprommately 38 000 acres of
.tlmberland &

{ PAR:86; In the eourse: and conduct of their busmesSes pI‘lOI' to Oc-
‘tober 1965, as aforesaid, both: Jeffreys and- Spaulding sold their prod-
ucts to purchasers located in various States of the United States and
caused such products; when sold, to be transported from their facilities
in Virginia to such purchasers located in various other States of the
United States. In so doing both Jeffreys and Spaulding were engaged
in “commerce,” as “commerce” is defined in the Clayton Act, as
amended.

Par. 37. In October 1965, Georgia-Pacific Corporation acquired all
of the assets of Jeffreys, Spaulding Manufacturing Company, Incor-
porated and Spaulding Lumber Company, Incorporated. The com-
bined consideration paid by G-P for these acquisitions was 80,112
shares of G—P common stock, which was valued at apprommately
$4,570,000.

Par. 88. The timberlands acquired in the aforesaid acquisitlons
served to assure long-term production stability for G-P’s softwood
plywood plant at Emporia, Virginia. :

Barrow Manufacturing Company and Bari ow Land & Timber
Company

Par. 39. Prior to and until November 1966 Barrow Manufacturing
Company, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Barrow,” and Barrow
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Land & Timber Company, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Bar--
row Land,” were corporations organized, existing, and doing business
under the laws of the State of North Carolina, with their offices and
principal places of business located at Ahoskie, North Carolina. .

- Par. 40. Barrow and Barrow Land were closely held corporatlons
: admmlstered by. the same executive officer, John X. Barrow, Jr:, and
operated so.as to mutually benefit each other.

Par. 41. Barrow was engaged in the production and sale of lumber ,
In the year preceding its acquisition by G-P, Barrow produced ap-
proximately 12,676,000 board feet of lumber. In.that. year Barrow’s
lumber sales amounted to approximately $1,110,000, Barrow  Land
was a land and timber holding company which did: not engage in man-
ufacturing. The combined stated value. of the assets of Barrow. and
Barrow Land was approximately $1,015,000.: ‘Included among such- as-
sets were the combined total:of approxuxlately 6,000 -acres of timber-
{ands and cutting contract rights to apprommately 5 OOO ,000 “board
feet of timber. . .

Par. 42, In the course a,nd conduct of these busmesses prlor to No-
Vember 1966 as aforesaid, Barrow sold its products to purchasers lo-
~ cated in various States of the United States and caused such products, -
when sold, to be transported from Barrow’s facilities in North Caro-
lina. to. such purchasers located in various other States of the. Umted
States. In so doing Barrow was engaged in “commerce,” as “commerce”
is defined in the Clayton Act, as amended, and by virtue of the manner
in which Barrow Land was operated for the benefit of Barrow, afore-
said Barrow Land was likewise engaged in “commerce.”

Pagr. 48. In November 1966, Georgia-Pacific Corporation acquired all
of the assets of Barrow Manufacturing Company and all of the stock
and assets of Barrow Land & Timber Company. The combined con-
sideration paid by G-P for these acquisitions was 25,000 shares of G-P
common stock, which was valued at approximately $1,200,000.

Paxr. 44. The timberlands acquired in the aforesaid acquisitions
served to supplement G-P’s timber supply for its softwood plywood
pl‘mt at Emporia, Virginia.

Reynolds & Manley Lumber Company

Par. 45. Prior to and until February 1966, Reynolds & Manley
Lumber Company, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Reynolds &
Manley,” was a corporation organized, existing, and doing business
under the laws of the State of Georgia with its office and principal
place of business located at Savannah, Georgia.
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- PA4r. 46. Reynolds & Manley was engaged in the productaon and sale
~ of lumber. In the year preceding its acquisition by ‘G-P; Reynolds &
Manley produced approximately 7,266,000 board feet’ of lumber. In
that year, Reynolds & Manley’s lumber sales amounted to approxi:
* mately $1,300,000, and the stated value of its assets was approximately
$1,877,000. Included among such a,ssebs were apprommately 13 000
acres of timberland. '

Paz. 47. In the course and conduct of its busmess prlor to Februa,ry ‘

'1966, as aforesaid, Reynolds & Manley sold its products to purchasers

_-locaxted in various States of the United States and ‘catsed such prod: -

" ‘ucts, when sold; to be transported from its fac.lhtles in' Geeorgia to such

purchasers located in various other States of the United States. In so

domg Reynolds & Manley was ‘engaged in “commerce,” as “commerce”

1s defined in the Clayton Act, as amended. :

- 'Pars 48. TIn February 1966, Georgm “Pacific: Corporatlon acqulred :
“all of the assets of Reynolds & Manley Lumber Company for 40,500
shares of G-P common stock valued at approximately $2,47 0,500,

" PAr. 49. Subsequent tothe aforesaid acquisition, G-P abandoned the
Tumber operations at Savannah, Georgia, and’ replaced them “with ‘4
new mill located at Port Wentworth Georgia. It also constructed a
plant for the’ productlon of softwood plywood at Savannah, Georgla
This plant had an original anhual capacity of 50 million square feet of
softwood plywood, The acquisition of Reynolds & Manley served to
assure long-term production stability for G-P’s softwood plywood
plant at Savanna,h Georgia.

Williams Furmture Corporation and Southern Coatlntrs and
Chemical Company

Par. 50 Prior to and until October 20; 1967, Williams Furmture
Corporation, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Williams,” and
Southern Coatings and Chemical Company, sometimes hereinafter
referred to as “Southern,” were corporations organized, existing and
doing business under the laws of the State of South Carolina with
f;helr offices and prlnmpal places of business located at Sumter, South
Carolina.

Par. 51. Many of the stockholders of Williams were also stock-
holders of Southern. The two corporations together with their sub-
sidiaries were operated under similar management as a complex of
interrelated businesses.
© Par. 52. Williams and_ its five wholly-owned subs1d1ar1es were en-
gaged in the manufacture and sale of furniture, softwood plywood
and doors. Southern was engaged in the production and sale of paint
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and a variety of chemical products. Additionally, it operated a, pine
sawmill at Russellville, South Carolina. In the year preceding: their
acquisition by G-P, Williams and Southern had combined sales of
apprommately $26,290,000,_ and the stated value of their.combined -
assets was . approxnnately $31, 100,000. Included -among such -assets
were approximately 170,000 acres of land in South Carolina containing
in excess of 400 million: board feet.of pine and hardwood timber. .

~ Par. 53. In the course and conduct of their. businesses prior to. Octo-
ber 20, 1967 as aforesaid, both Williams and Southern sold, their
products to purchasers looated in various: States of the United States
and oaused sueh products when sold to be transported from their
such purchasers located m va,rlous other States of the Umted States
In so doing both Williams and Southern ‘were engaged in “commeroe,’?
-as “commerce” is defined in the Clayton Act, as amended. :

- Par. 54, By virtue of a merger ocourring on or about’ Ootober 20 '
1967 whereby Williams Furniture Corporation and Southern Coat—
ings and Chemical Company were merged with and into. Georgia-
Pacific Corporation, said Georgia-Pacific Corporation acquired all
of the assets of said Williams Furniture Corporation and said South-
~ern Coatings and Chemical Company. In connection with the afore-
said merger the consideration for the conversion of Williams stock
and Southern stock was approximately 1,142,857 shares of G-P $1.40
convertible preferred stock values at approximately $40,000,000.

Par. 55. Subsequent to the aforesaid merger, G-P constructed a
softwood plywood plant at Russellville, South Carolina which was
supplied, at least in substantial part, w-ith timber acquired in the afore-
said merger with Williams and Southern '

Tommy Reynolds Lumber Company

PAR 56. Prior to and untll December 1967, Tommy Reynolds Lum-
ber Company, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “T.R.,” was a cor-
poration organized, existing and doing business under the laws of the
State of Arkansas with its office and principal place of business located
at Hamburg, Arkansas.

Par. 57. T.R. was engaged in the production and sale of lumber
In the year preceding its acquisition by G-P, T.R. produced approxi-
mately 42,162,000 board feet of lumber. In that year T.R.’s lumber
sales amounted to approximately $3,400,000, and the stated value of
its assets was approximately $2,300,000. Included among such assets
was a 10-year cutting contract relating to Georgia-Pacific Corpora-
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tlon land under the térms of wh’lch 100 mllhon feet of tlmber remalned
to be cut by T.R. '
Par. 58. In the course and conduct of its business prlor to Decem-

‘ber 1967, as aforesaid, T.R. sold its products to purchasers located in

various Sbates of the Unlbed States and caused such products, when

- s0ld; to be transported from its facilities in Arkansas to such: pur-

chasers located in various other States of the United States. In so doing
T.R. ‘was engaged in “commerce as oommerce” 1s deﬁned in the
Clayton ‘Act, as amended. =

~PAR. '59. In December 1967, Georgm—Pamﬁc Corpora,tmn aoqulred

~ all of the ‘assets of Tommy Reynolds Lumber Company ‘for 27,080

shares of G—P common stock valued at apprommately $1,547,000.

- Par. 60. Subsequerit to the aforesaid acquisition, G=P abandoned the
lumber operations ‘at- Hambut'g, Arkansas. Prior to the acquisition,
G-P had constructed two softwood plywood plants ‘at Crossett,
Arkansas. The T.R. acqu1s1t10n facilitated the: utilization *of- sueh
plants, and afforded access to needed timber supplles forwthese sofl;—

'Wood plywood faclhtles e

The Urama Lumber Company, lelted

" Par. 61 Prlor to and untll September 1968 the Urania Lumber
Company, Limited, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Urania,”
was a corporation organized, existing, and doing business under the
laws of the State of Louisiana with its office and principal place of
business located at Urania, Louisiana.

Par. 62. Urania was engaged in the production and sale of lumber.
In the year preceding its acquisition by G-P, Urania produced ap-
proximately 25,281,000 board feet of lumber. In that year, Urania’s
lumber sales amounted to approximately $2,200,000, and the stated
value of its assets was approximately $42,422,200. Included among
such assets were approximately 130,000 acres of pine timberlands.

Paz. 63. In the course and conduct of its business prior to September
1968, as aforesaid, Urania sold its products to purchasers located in
various States of the United States and caused such products, when
sold, to be transported from its facilities at Urania, Louisiana to such
purchasers located in various other States of the United States. In so
doing Urania was engaged in “commerce,” as “commerce” is defined
in the Clayton Act,as amended.

Par. 64. In October 1967, Georgia-Pacific Corporation acquired all
of the stock and assets of Edenborn, Inc., a Louisiana corporation, for
approximately $12,000,000. The principal asset of Edenborn, Ine.
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- Was a 30 percent..ownership in the outstanding capital stock of the
Urania Lumber Company, Limited. :
Par. 65. In September 1968, Georgia-Pacific- Corporation a,cqulred
the remaining outstanding st,ock and assets of the Urama Lumberﬁ
Company, Limited for approximately $34,122,200. ‘
Par. 66. Subsequent to the aforesaid acquisition of ‘Urania, G—P?
abandoned the lumber operation at Urania, Louisiana and constructed
a plant for the production’of seftwood plywood. Such plant had an
original annual capacity to produce 140 million square feet of softwood
plywood. Such plant will be supplied, at leastin. substantlal part w1thf'
- timber acqulred in the aforesald acqu151t10n of Urama ‘

Sledge Lumber Corporatlon

PAR 67. Prior to and until Apr1l 1969, Sledcre Lumber COI poratlon,“
sometimes heremafter referred to as “Sledrre,” Was a corporamon;
organized, ex1st1ng and doma busmess under the laws. of the State of} :
North Carolina. with its oﬁice and pr1nc1pal plaee of busmess loca,ted'
at Wh1tev1lle, North Ca.rohna i

Par. 68. Sledge was. engaged in the pmductlon and sale of lumber g
In the year preceding its aoquls1t10n by G-P, Sledge produced ap- .
proximately 15,000,000 board feet of lumber. In that year Sledge’s
lumber sales amounted to approximately $1,625,000, and the stated
value of its assets was approximately $7,070,000. Included among such
assets were approximately 20,000 acres of forested timberlands.

Par. 69. In the course and conduct of its business prior to April
1969, as aforesaid, Sledge sold its products to purchasers located in
various States of the United States and caused such products, when
sold, to be transperted from its facilities in North Carolina to such
purchasers located in various other States of the United States. In so
doing Sledge was engaged in “commerce,” as “commerce” is defined
in the Clayton Act, as amended.

Par. 70. In April 1969, Georgia-Pacific Corporation acquired all of
the assets of Sledge Lumber Corporation for approximately $6,985,000.

Par. 71. Subsequent to the aforesaid acquisition, G-P commenced
the construction of a plant for the production of softwood plywood in
Whiteville, North Carolina. Such plant with an original annual ca-
pacity to produce 110 million square feet of softwood plywood is
scheduled to begin production in 1971. Such' plant will be supplied,
at least in substantial part, with timber acquired in the aforesaid
acquisition of Sledge. '
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Reynolds & Draper- Lumber Company

- PAR. 72. Prior to and until August 1969 Reynold & Draper Lumber
Company, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Reynolds.& Draper,”)
was a corporation organized, existing, and doing business under the .
laws of the State of Arkansas with- 1ts ofﬁce ‘and prlnclpal place of
- business located at E1 Dorado, Arkansas. . - . -

Par. 73. Reynolds & Draper was. engaged in‘the productmn and sarle_v
of lumber. In the year preceding its acquisition by G—P, Reynolds &
Draper produced approximately 44,700,000 board feet of lumber. In.
that year Reynolds & Draper’s lumber: sales  amounted to approxi-:
mately $4,286,000, and the stated value of its assets was approximately
$3,400,000. Included ‘among. such ‘assets were approx1mately 10,000
acres of pine timberland.

Par. 74. In the course and conduct of its busmess prlor to August
1969, as a,foresald Reynolds & Draper sold its products to purchasers”
located 1in various States of the United States and caused such prod-
ucts, when sold, to be transported from its facilities i in Arkansas to
Such purchasers located in various other States of the United States.
In so domg Reynolds & Draper was enga,ged in “commerce " as “com- ‘,
merce” is defined in the Clayton Act, as amended. ' o

PAr. 75. Tn August 1969, Georgia-Pacific Corporatlon acqulred all
of the assets of Reynolds & Drapel Lumber Company for 49,008 shares
of Georgia-Pacific common stock valued at approximately $2 450,000.

Par. 76. Subsequent to the aforesaid acquisition, G-P commenced

the construction of a plant for the production of softwood plywood
at New Waverly, Texas. Such plant with an original annual capacity
to produce approximately 140,000,000 square feet of softwood plywood
1s scheduled to begin production in early 1971. Such plant will be sup-
plied, at least in substantial part, with timber acquired in the afore-
said acquisition of Reynolds & Draper.

Reynolds-Wilson Lumber Company

Par. 77. Prior to and until August 1969, Reynolds-Wilson Lumber
Company, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Reynolds-Wilson,”
was a corporation organized, existing and doing business under the
laws of the State of Texas with its office and prmmp‘tl place of business
located at Corrigan, Texas.

Par. 78. Reynolds-Wilson was engaged in the production and sale
of lumber. In the year preceding its acquisition by G-P, Reynolds-
Wilson produced approximately 53,800,000 board feet of lumber. In
that year Reynolds-Wilson’s lumber sales amounted to approximately
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. .$5,113,000, .and .the stated-value .of . its assets..was. approximately
$6,154,000. Included among such assets.were approximately 9,000.acres
. of pine timberland. - Co : IR

Par. 79. In the course and conduct of its business prior to August
1969, as. aforesaid, Reynolds-Wilson:sold its products to purchasers
located in various States of the United States and caused such prod-
ucts, when sold, to be transported from its facilities in Texas to such
purchasers.located.in various-other States of the United States. In so
doing Reynolds-Wilson was engaged in “commerce,” as “commerce”
is defined in the Clayton'Act,as amended. - ,

Par. 80. In August 1969, Georgia-Pacific Corporation acquired all
of the assets of Reynolds-Wilson Lumber Company for approximately
89,820 shares of Georgia-Pacific common stock valued at approxi- ’
. mately $4,491,000. ‘

Par. 81. Subsequent: to the. aforesaid acquisition G—P commenced
the construction of a plant for the production of softwood. plywood
‘at New Waverly, Texas. Such plant with an original annual capacity
to prodice 140,000,000 square feet of softwood plywood is scheduled
to begin production in early 1971. Such plant will be supplied, at least
in substantial part, with timber acquired in the aforesaid acquisition
of Reynolds-Wilson. ‘

ADVERSE COMPLETITIVE EFYFECTS

Par. 82. The cumulative effect of the aforesaid acquisitions by
Georgia-Pacific Corporation of the stock and assets of Fordyce Lum-
ber Company ; American Timber Products Company ; Jeffreys, Spauld-
ing Manufacturing Company, Incorporated ; Spaulding Lumber Com-
pany, Incorporated ; Barrow Manufacturing Company ; Barrow Land
& Timber Company ; Reynolds & Manley Lumber Company ; Williams
Furniture Corporation; Southern Coatings and Chemical Company ;
Tommy Reynolds Lumber Company ; the Urania Lumber Company,
Limited; Sledge Lumber Corporation; Reynolds & Draper Lumber
Company and Reynolds-Wilson Lumber Company may be substan-
tially to lessen competition or to tend to create a monopoly in the
manufacture and sale of softwood plywood in the United States as a
whole in the following ways, among others:

(a) Potential competition between G-P and the aforesaid corpora-
tions acquired by it has been eliminated ,

(b) Potential competition among and between the aforesaid corpo-
rations acquired by G—P has been eliminated ;

(c) The dominant position of G—P has been enhanced and may be
further enhanced ;
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(d) An industry trend toward concentratlon ha,s been accelerated

““ghd'may be furtheraceelerated; -

(e) The degree of concentratlon has been mcreased and ma,y be
further increased ;- e

(f) The entry. of new competltlve entities has been and may contmue
to be made more difficult ; e

" (g) The actual and potentla.l competitive power of G-P has been

‘enhanced to the point where it threatens the ex1sben0e of a s1gn1ﬁcant

competitive segment of the industry structure; -
(h) The availability of southern pine timber bases suitable to sup-

- 'port long term productlon of softwood plywood has been substantmlly

decreased
: THE NATURE OF THE VIOLATION

- Par. 83. The acquisition by: Georgla Pacific Corpora,tlon of the

: stock and assets of the aforesaid corporations together with the cumula-

tive.effect thereof as hereinbefore alleged in this Count I constitute.a

‘'violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act (U S.C. Tltle 15, Section 18),

as: a,mended
0 : COUNT I .

DEFINITIONS

Par. 84. The allegations set forth in Paragraph 1 of Count I are
hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of Count II as if
fully rewritten herein.

THE RESPONDENT

Par. 85. The allegations set forth in Paragraphs 2 through 12, in-
clusive, of Count I are hereby incorporated by reference and made a
part of Count IT as if fully rewritten herein.

THE NATURE OF TRADE AND COMMERCE

Par. 86. The allegations set forth in Paragraphs 13 through 22, in-
clusive, of Count I are hereby incorporated by reference and made a
part of Count IT as if fully rewritten herein.

THE ACQUISITIONS
Fordyce Lumber Company

Par. 87. The allegations set forth in Paragraphs 23, 24, 26, and 27
of Count I are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of
Count IT asif fully rewritten herein.
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Pag. 88, A substantial part, if not all, of the assets obtained by
G-P in the Fordyce acquisition became a part of the interstate business
of G-P and were used for the benefit and enhancement of interstate

. operations.

‘American Timber P-roducts Compa_,ny

Par. 39. The allegations set forth in Paragraphs 28, 29, 31 and 82
of Count I are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of
Count IT as if fully rewritten herein,

Par. 90. A substantial part, if not all ~of the assets obtalned by
G-P in the American Timber acquisition became a part of the inter-
state business of G—P and were used for the benefit and enhancement of
its 1nterstate operations.

Jeffreys, Spa,uldlng Manufacturmg Compa,ny, Incorporated and
Spauldlng Lumber Company, Incorporated

Par. 91. The allegatlons set forth in Paragra,phs 33, 34, 35, 37,and
38 of Count I are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part
of Count IT asif fully rewritten herein.

Par. 92. A substantial part, if not all, of the assets obtained by
G-P in the Jeffreys acquisition and in the Spaulding acquisition be-
came a part of the interstate business of G—P and were used for the
benefit and enhancement of its interstate operations.

Barrow Manufacturing Company and Barrow Land & Timber
Company

Par. 93. The allegations set forth in Paragraphs 39, 40, 41, 43 and
44 of Count I are hereby incorporated by reference and ma,de a part
of Count IT as if fully rewritten herein.

Par. 94. A substantial part, if not.all, of the assets obtained by G-P
in the Barrow acquisition and in the Barrow Land acquisition became a
part of the interstate business of G-P and were used for the benefit
and enhancement of its interstate operations.

Reynolds & Manley Lumber Company

Par. 95. The allegations set forth in Paragraphs 45, 46, 48 and 49
of the Count I are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part
of Count IT asif fully rewritten herein.

Par. 96. A’ substantial part, if not all, of the assets obtained by G-P
in the Reynolds & Manley acquisition became a part of the interstate
business of G—P and were used for the benefit and enhancement of its
interstate operations.
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Wllhams Furnlture Corporatlon and Southern Coatlngs and Chemmal

PAR 97 The a,llega,tlons set forth in Pamgraphs 50 51, 52 54 and
55 of Count I are hereby incorporated by reference. and made a part
of Count IT as if fully rewritten herein.

Par. 98. A substantial part; if not all, of- the assets obtalned byG-P
in the merger with Williams and Southern became a part of the
interstate business of G-P and were: used for the beneﬁt and enhance— :
; ment of 1ts mterstate operatlons '

Tommy Reynolds Lumber Company

PAR 99. The allegations set forth in Pa.ragraphs 56 57 59 and 60
of Count I are hereby incorporated by referenee and rnade a part of
Count IT asif fully rewritten herein. .~ . ‘

Par. 100. A substantial part, if not all, of the assets obtamed by
G-P:in:the T.R. acquisition became a part of the interstate business
of G-P and were used for the beneﬁt and enhancement of 1ts 1nterstate
operatlons

Edenborn Inc a,nd the Urama Lumber Compa,ny, Lumted

PAR 101. Prior to and until October 1967, Edenborn, Inc., sometimes
hereinafter referred to as “Edenborn,” was a LOIllSl&Il& corporatlon
- Par. 102: Edenborn owned approximately 30 percent of the capital

stock of the Urania Lumber Company, Limited.

Par. 103. In October 1967, Georgia-Pacific Corporatlon acquired all
of the stock and assets of Edenborn

Par. 104. Prior to and until September 1968, the Urania Lumber
- Company, Limited, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Urania,”
was a corporation organized, existing, and doing business under the
laws of the State of Louisiana with its office and principal place of
business located at Urania, Louisiana.

Par. 105. Urania was engaged in the production and sale of lumber.
In the year preceding its acquisition by G-P, Urania produced ap-
proximately 25,281,000 board feet of lumber. In that year, Urania’s
lumber sales amounted to approximately $2,200,000, and the stated
value of its assets was approximately $42 422,200 Included among
such assets were approx1mately 130,000 acres of pine timberlands.

Par. 106. Already owning 30 percent of the stock of Urania by vir-
tue of its acquisition of Edenborn, Georgia-Pacific Corporation, in
September 1968, acquired the remaining outstanding stock and assets
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of the Urania Lumber Company, Limited for approximately
$34,122,200.

Pax. 107. Subsequent to the aforesaid a,cqulsmon of Urania, G-P
abandoned the lumber operatlon at Urania, Louisiana and constructed
a plant for the production of softwood plywood. Such plant had an
original annual _capacity to produce 140 million square feet of soft-
wood plywood. Such plant will be supplied, at least in substantial
part, with timber acquired as a ‘result of the aforesaid acqu1s1t10ns
of Edenborn and Urania.

Par. 108. A substantial part, if not all of the assets of Urania ob-
tained by G-P by virtue of its acqu1s1t10ns of Edenborn and Urania,
as aforesaid, became a part of the interstate business of G—P and were _
used for the beneﬁt and enhancement of its mterstate operatlons

Sledge Lumber Corporanon

Par. 109 The allega,tlons set forth in Paragra,phs 67, 68, 70 and 7 1
of Count I are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part ofs+ -
Count IT as if fully rewritten herein. .

Par. 110. A substantial part, if not. all of: the assets obtamed by
G-P in the Sledge acquisition became a part of the interstate business
of G-P and were used for the benefit and enhancement of its interstate
operations,

Reynolds & Draper Lumber Company

Par. 111. The allegations set forth in Paragraphs 72, 73, 75, and 76
of Count I are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of
Count IT as if fully rewritten herein. ‘

Par. 112. A substantial part, if not all, of the assets obtained by G-P
in the Reynolds & Draper acquisition became a part of the interstate
business of G—P and were used for the benefit and enhancement of its
interstate operations.

Reynolds-Wilson Lumber Company

Pag. 113. The allegations set forth in Paragraphs 77, 78, 80 and 81
of Count I are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of
Count IT as if fully rewritten herein.

Par. 114. A substantial part, if not all, of the assets obtained by
G-P in the Reynolds-Wilson acquisition became a part of the inter-
state business of G—P and were used for the benefit and enhancement
of its interstate operations.

494-841—173—— 64
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- D. L. Fair Lumber Company '

PAR 115. Prior to and until January 9, 1965, D. L. Fair Lumber

Company, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “D. L. Fair,” was a
corporation organized, existing and doing business under the laws
of the State of MlSSlSSIppl with its office and principal place of busi-
ness located at Louisville,. MlSSlSSlppl :
. Par. 116. D. L. Fair owned a portable savvmlll a ﬁoormg mill and a
“dimension mill which, prior to January 9, 1965, were under lease to
other parties. D. L. Fair also owned approx1mately 92,000 acres of
plne timberlands located in the vicinity of Louisville, Mlsis1s51pp1

Par. 117. On or about January 9, 1965, Georgia-Pacific Corporatlon
acquired all of the stock and assets of D. L. Fair Lumber Company for
approximately $11,750,000.

Par. 118. Subsequent to the aforesaid acquisition G P constructed
a softwood plywood mill at Louisville, Mississippi, which was sup-
phed at least in substantial part, w1th tlmber acqmred in'the aforesaid
acquisition of D. L. Fair...

- Par. 119. A substantial part, if not all, of the assets obtalned by G=-P

in the D. L. Fair acquisition became a part of the interstate business of

G-P and were used for the benefit and enhancement of its interstate

operations. - ~
ADVERSE COMPETITIVE EFFECTS

Par. 120. The cumulative effect of the aforesaid acquisitions by
Georgia-Pacific Corporation of the stock and assets of Fordyce Lum-
ber Company ; American Timber Products Company ; Jeffreys, Spaul-
ding Manufacturing Company, Incorporated; Spaulding Lumber
Company, Incorporated; Barrow Manufacturing Company ; Barrow
Land & Timber Company; Reynolds & Manley Lumber Company ;
Williams Furniture Corporation; Southern Coatings and Chemical
Company ; Tommy Reynolds Lumber Company ; Edenborn, Inc.; the
Urania Lumber Company, Limited; Sledge Lumber Corporation;
Reynolds & Draper Lumber Company; Reynolds-Wilson Lumber
Company; and D. L. Fair Lumber Company may be substantiaily to
lessen competition or to tend to create a monopoly in the manufacture
and sale of softwood plywood in the United States as a whole in the
following ways, among others:

(a) Potential competition between G-P and the aforesaid corpora-

- tions acquired by it has been eliminated ;

(b) Potential competition among and between the aforesaid cor-

porations acquired by G-P has been eliminated ;
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wzife)- The! dominant: posmon of’ G—P ha.s been enhanced and may.be
'further enhanced ; : '

“(d) An 1ndustry trend toward concentratlon has been accelerated-
and may be further accelerated ; : :

(e) The degree of concentratmn has been increased and may be
further increased ; -

(f): The entry of new competltlve entities has been and may con-
tinue to be made more difficult;

(g) The actual and potentlal competitive power of G-P has been
enhanced to the point where it threatens the existence of a mgmﬁca.nt
competitive segment of the industry structure, »

(h) The availability of southern pine timber bases suitable to sup-
port long term production of softwood plywood has been substantlally
decreased.

- THE NATURE OF THE VIOLATION

Par. 121. The acquisition by Georgia-Pacific Corporation of the
stock and assets of the aforesaid corporations together with the sub-
sequent use of such assets and the cumulative effect thereof as herein-
before alleged in ‘this Count IT were and are all to the prejudice-and
injury of the public and constitute unfair methods of competition in
commerce and unfair acts in commerce in violation of Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act (U.S.C. Title 15, Section 45), as-
amended.

Drciston anp Orber

The Federal Trade Commission having issued a complaint charging
that the respondent named in the caption hereof has violated the
provisions of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, and Section 5
of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 18, 45; and

The Commission, by order issued November 21, 1972 [p. 1041 herein],
baving withdrawn this matter from adjudication pursuant to Section

"2.84(d) of its rules; and

The respondent and complaint counsel having executed an agree-
ment containing a consent order, an admission by respondent of all
the jurisdictional facts set forth in the complaint which the Commis-
sion issued, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for settle-
ment purposes only and does not constitute an admission by respondent
that the law has been violated, as set forth in such complaint, and
waivers and provisions as required by the Commission’s rules; and

The Commission having thereafter given careful consideration to
the executed consent agreement and being of the opinion that the relief
provided by the order contained therein will restructure the softwood
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. plywood: mdustry by creatlng a new and. viable national entity thereby

enhancing competition on a nationwide ba51s, and havmg therefore
- determined that the relief is adequate and appropriate in all respects

. to dispose of this matter, and having also duly considered: the data,
views, arguments and comments submitted by interested members of
- the public and having held a public hearing before ‘the, Commission
on December 18, 1972, now- in further conformity with the. procedure
prescribed in Sectlon 2.34(b) of its rules; the Commission hereby
makes the following jurisdictional ﬁndmgs and enters the tollowmg
order:.
- 1. Respondent Georgxa—Pamﬁc Corporatlon is .a.; corporatlon or-
" ganized, existing and doing business under the laws of the State of
Georgia, with its office and principal place of busmess located at 900
S.W. Fifth Avenue, Portland, Oregon.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has ]unsdlctlon of this proceed-
ing and of the respondent, and the proceeding is in the public interest.

ORDER

For the purposes of this order the followmg deﬁnltlons shall apply
1. Respondent—Georgm Pamﬁc Corporation, its officers, dlrectors,
" agents; representatives, employees, subsidiaries, -affiliates, successors -
" and assigns and any person, partnership, corporation, or other legal
entity acting for or on its behalf or with its express or implied consent ;
Provided, however, That the term respondent shall not be construed
to include Louisiana-Pacific.
9. The South—The States of Virginia, North Carolina, South Caro-
lina, Georgia, Florida, Alabama, Mississippi, Oklahoma, Arkansas,
Louisiana, Texas, and Tennessee.
8. Market price—the price established within the same area, for
» s1mllar quantities, grades and types of the commodity bemg sold.

4. Single ownersth——one or more parcels of timberland in which
~any interest in the fee is commonly or jointly held by any one or more
persons, trust, partnerships, corporations or other legal entities.

5. Person—any individual, partnership, firm, association, corpora-
tion, governmental agency or other legal or business entity.

PARAGRAPH 1

It is ordered, That Respondent shall: '
(A) Prior to thirty (30) days from the date of service of this
order (hereinafter referred to as the “effective date”) have exist-
ing or cause to be formed an independent corporation (herein-
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- after called “Louisiana-Pacific”) with at least sufficient shares of
‘" authorized common stock in order to comply with the provisions
~ of this order and with by-laws eontaining a provision which shall

insure compha,nce with subparagraph (G) hereof;
(B)- Within sixty (60) days of the effective date mail to its

" ‘stockholders a notice of a special meeting of stockholders, to-
- gether with a proxy statement containing the recommendation

of management that the stockholders authorlze the transfer of

assets called for by this order;":
(C) Prior to thirty (30) days after the effective date transfer

" to Louisiana-Pacific assets of respondent including 45 plants and
* mills, having a net worth of not less than $150,000,000 and more

fully described in Appendlces 1 and 2 of this order,* in exchange

for all of the capital stock of Louisiana-Pacific-and the assump-

" tion by Louisigna-Pacific of the 11ab111t1es tra,nsfel red in connec- -

tion with the assets referred to; - ,
(D) Prior to February 1, 1973, after retammg shares of Lou-.
isiana-Pacific stock for poss1ble d1str1but10n under: respondent’s
Contingent Valuation Contracts, distribute the remainder of said
stock of Louisiana-Pacific to the stockholders of récord on Janu-

- ary 2, 1978, in the ratio of one share of Louisiana-Pacific stock

for each four shares of respondent’s stock held on January 2,
1973, and shall make appropriate provisions for the handling ot
fractlonal shares;

(E) Within nlnety (90) days of distribution of the Louisiana-
Pacific stock, the amount credited to all salaried personnel in
respondent’s Stock Bonus Plan shall be transferred to a similar
plan for the salaried employees who were former employees of
respondent and who shall become employees of Louisiana-Pacific,
and a like procedure shall be followed regarding the pensions of
hourly einployees so involved ;

(F) Make available executlve personnel of respondent, in-
cluding officers who have present responsibility concerning the
properties to be transferred by the respondent to Louisiana-
Pacific. These officers shall resign from their respective positions
with the respondent upon assuming their office with Louisiana-
Pacific and all of the present personnel of the respondent pres-
ently employed by the respondent in the respective operations
transferred to Louisiana-Pacific shall be transferred to Louisiana-

*Infra, pages 1011-16.
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.-Pacifie. - In addition, all of the . present - respondent personnel
.- involved in timber management, timber and log purchases and
-+ logging . for these operations .shall likewise be transferred
 to Louisiana-Pacific. The- .present sales organization of re-
.. spondent now ‘selling. all of its lumber production, . kitchen
- cabinets, and aluminum and wood-door and. window production
- for the properties transferred to Louisiana- Pamﬁc shall likewise
be transferred to Louisiana-Pacific; and
(&) Respondent shall provide tha.t
R « 1. prior to.the distribution of the Loulslana—Paclﬁc stock
BN P " to the stockholders of- respondent, respondent shall vote the
; - stock of Liouisiana-Pacific for the election of an interim board
" . of directors to serve until the election of an initial board of
- directors by the stockholders of Louisiana-Pacific; -
- . 2..Louisiana-Pacific shall ~within sixty ; (60) days of the
Foo distribution of the Louisiana-Pacific: stock call a stock-
» * . holders’ meeting for the purpose of electlng an- mltml boa,rd
of directors; .
{8, except as prov1ded for in subparagraph 1 hereof and
©.except:with respect.to organizational matters prior te the
- distribution of the Louisiana-Pacific stock to the stockhold-
ers of respondent, Georgia-Pacific Corporation shall not vote
any stock of Louisiana—Paciﬁc which it shall hold or which
shall be held under its direction or control;

4. no nominee for the initial board of directors of Louisiana-
Pacific shall at the time of his election be an officer or director
of respondent; and :

5. subsequent to the election of the initial board of directors
of Louisiana-Pacific no officer or director of respondent shall
concurrently serve as an officer or director of Louisiana-
Pacific nor shall any officer or director of Louisiana-Pacific
serve concurrently as an officer or director -of respondent.

PARAGRAPH 2

1t is further ordered, That Respondent nny, as requested by
Louisiana-Pacific, for a period of ten (10) years from the effective
date, purchase the softwood plywood production of Louisiana-Pacific
at the current market price for such product and on the same terms and
conditions as other purchases of softwood plywood made by respond-
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ent, but only up to the percentage -of Louisiana- Pamﬁc S productlon as
set forth lmmedlately hereafter: :

; AR . . . R ) Percent

. lst year. __. .. e . —- I 100
2nd year—___- - : - . ' 80
3rd year e AL o 60

4th year__._. il Clu i il 40

5th to the 10th year.-_.___.__ SR - 20

Provided, however, That the purchases by respondent from Louisiana-
Pacific of redwood plywood siding shall not be: considered to be in-
cluded in the limitations or in the percentages set forth above.

PARAGRAPH 3

1t is*further ordered,; That for a period of five (5) years from the
effective’ date,” respondent shall ‘cease and desist- from acqulrmg
directly or 1nd1rectly any fee ownership or leasehold interest in pine
or mixed pine and hardwood timberland i n the South which is held
in' single owhership exceeding 25,000 acres, Provided, however, -

(A) that this limitation shall not apply to land acquired: for:
aid uitilized for a purpose other than in plywood production; ,

(B) that, for the purpose of determmmg whether 25,000 acres
have been a,cqulred acres acquired from a single owner in sep-
arate transactions will only be accumulated if they occur within .
12 months of each other;

(C) that this limitation shall not apply to any tract regardless
of its size on which respondent at the time of said acquisition
and at the effective date shall have cutting rights thereon existing
on the effective date and 2 bona fide offer has been made for such
land by a person not affiliated with respondent and

(D) that if respondent does acquire said timberland pursuant

" to Paragraph 3(C), respondent is:

(a) Prohibited from using from said lands so acquired
any greater volume of plywood logs for use in any softwood
plywood plant of respondent than the average annual amount
taken from said lands by respondent in the three (3) years
prior to said acquisition;

(b) Prohibited from terminating (except for substantial
breach) any cutting contract, timber deed or any other right
held by any other person other than the person from whom
such timberland was acquired, in respect of timber on such
acquired lands.

(¢) Required to offer for sale annually, on the open market
and at market prices, the same volume of softwood timber
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- from the: acquired lands as that board: footage constxtutmg
the average annual open market, sales of softwood timber cut
- from the acquired lands during the three (3) calendar years
"ending 1mmedlately prior to such acquisition by thlrd part1es
‘having no interest in the fee of such lands;  ~ "
(d) Required, within sixty (60) days of any acqulsltlon,
of such interest, to file a report. in writing with the Federal
. Trade: Commlssmn setting forth in detail a description of the
-interest so acquired and the information necessary-to.i insure
.-compliance with ‘the provisions of this order.

PARAGRAPH 4

It is ffwrﬂwr ordered, That for a period of five (5) years if re-
spondent acquires, for utilization in any plywood plant dlrectly or,
1nd1rect1y any fee ownership or leasehold interest. in:pine, or. mixed
pine and hardwood timberland. in the South, Whlch is held in single
OWIleI'Sh_Ip ranging -in- size.. from 10, OOO acres, to 25,000 acres, re-
spondent is: * ... '

(A). Prohlblted from usmg from sa,1d la,nds 0. acqulred any
greater volume of plywood,logs for’ use in any. softwood: ‘plywood
plant of the respondent than the average annual amount taken
from said lands by respondent in the three (8) years prlor to said
acquisition ;

(B) Prohibited from terminating (except for substantial
breach) any cutting contract timber deed or any other right held
by any other person other t,ha,n the person from whom such
timberland was acquired, in respeot of timber on such acquned
lands;

(C) Required to-offer for sale annually, on the open market
and at market prices, the same volume of softwood timber from
the acquired lands as that board footage constituting the average
annual open market sales of softwood timber cut from the ac-
quired lands during the three (8) calendar years endlng immedi-
ately prior to such acquisition by third parties having no interest
in the fee of such lands;

(D) Required, w1th1n suzty (60) days of any acquisition of such
interest, to file a report in writing with the Federal Trade Com-
‘mission setting forth in detail a description of the interest so ac-
quired and the information necessary to insure compliance with
the provisions of this order; and

(E). Prohibited from acquiring in any one yea,r more than
100,000 such acres. »
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l t s further ordered Tha,t for a perlod of ﬁve (5) years, from the
effective date, respondent is prohlblted from utilizing in its individual
softwood plywood plants now in operation any hlgher percentage of
pine timber purchased in the open market (which as used herein shall
mean all acquisitions of southern pine plywood timber other than
from lands held by respondent in fee), than the.percentage of such
timber utilized by the said individual plants of respondent from. -open -
market purchases made in 1972, except that the following plants of
‘respondent may purchase on the open market such logs up to the per-
centage set opp051te the plant llsted below e

) - ; . Percent’

. i Crossett, Arkansas Number 1. S e 20

- - Crossett; Arkansas Number 2. Lolall : - 20
.. Fordyce, Arkansas___.__.. , e 20

. Chiefland, Florida N : _ el 95

‘ Empona Vlrgmia____' S A el ) -9
" Russeliville; S. c ool OB RGPt ¢ S

‘Whiteville, N:C. wocolioz o Dol lol oo ai oo Do T sl 85

Promded however, That if any event beyond the control of respond-
ent shall " occur “which prevents respondent from cutting timber on
1lands held’ by respondent in fee, respondent shall be relieved of the
limitation on open market purchases, but only to the extent that such
event shall have prevented the acquisition of timber from lands held in
‘fee by respondent; and provided further, That within ninety (90)
days following the end of each of the five annual periods during which
this prohlbltlon is in effect, respondent shall file with the Federal
Trade Commission a 1eport showing compliance with the provision
of thls order. :
‘ 'PARAGRAPH 6

1t is further ordered, That for ten (10) years from the effective date,
respondent shall cease and desist from acquiring, directly or indirectly
through subsidiaries, or otherwise, for its use in the manufacture of
softwood plywood, from any person, firm or corporation other than
the manufacturer thereof or a regular dealer or distributor of such
equipment in the ordlnary course of such dealer’s or distributor’s
business:
(A) Any equlpment spemﬁcally de51gned for the manufacture
of softwood plywood;
(B) Any equipment specifically designed and theretofore used
in the manufacture of softwood plywood ; and






